HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 7, 2006
1:46 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:46:39 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Hol m

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Richard Foster
Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Mrk Neuman; Senator Con Bunde; Senator
Gretchen CGuess; Portia Parker, Deputy Director, Departnent
of Corrections; Susan Parks, Deputy Attorney Ceneral,
Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law, Rynnieva Mdss, Staff
to Rep. Coghill; Tanmy Sandoval, Acting Director Ofices of
Children’s Services; Janet Carke, Assistant Conm ssioner,
D vision of Finance and Managenent Services, Departnent of
Health and Social Services; Virginia Smley, Director,
D vision of Pioneer Hones, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services; Sharleen Giffin, Acting Director, D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Corrections; Robynn
Wl son, Director, D vision of Tax, Departnment of Revenue;
Jerry Burnett, Legislative Liaison, Departnent of Revenue;
Mla Cosgrove, Director, Division of Personnel, Departnent
of Adm ni stration.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
Quinlan Steiner, Drector, Ofice of Public Defender; Jan
Rut herdal e, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law

SUMVARY
CS SB 218(FIN)

An  Act relating to sex offenders and child
ki dnappers; relating to reporting of sex offenders

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



and child kidnappers; relating to periodic
pol ygraph exam nations for sex offenders released
on probation or parole; relating to sexual abuse
of a mnor; relating to the definitions of
"aggravated sex offense’ and 'child kidnapping';
relating to penalties for failure to report child
abuse or neglect; relating to sentencing for sex
of fenders and habitual crimnals; and providing
for an effective date.

CS SB 218 (FIN) was HEARD and HELD in Committee
for further consideration.

HB 408 An Act relating to the definition of 'child abuse
and neglect' for child protection purposes; and
providing for an effective date.

CS HB408 (FIN) was REPORTED QUT of Conmittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendations and 2 zero fiscal
notes (#1, DHSS; New, HFC).

HB 485 An Act anmending the State Personnel Act to place
in the exenpt service pharmaci sts and physicians
enployed in the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services or in the Departnment of Corrections and
corporate incone tax forensic auditors enployed by
the division of the Departnent of Revenue
principally responsible for the collection and
enforcenent of state taxes who specialize in
apportionment analysis and tax shelters of
mul ti state corporate taxpayers; and providing for
an effective date.

HB 485 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb218

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 218(FIN)

"An Act relating to sex offenders and child ki dnappers;
relating to reporting of sex offenders and child
ki dnappers; relating to periodic polygraph exam nations
for sex offenders released on probation or parole;
relating to sexual abuse of a mnor; relating to the
definitions of 'aggravated sex offense’ and 'child
ki dnapping'; relating to penalties for failure to
report child abuse or neglect; relating to sentencing
for sex offenders and habitual crimnals; and providing
for an effective date."

SENATOR CON BUNDE, SPONSOR, thanked the Conmittee and
pointed out exanples from weekend news articles from
Anchorage recounting various sexual crinmes, especially
noting an incident when an perpetrator commtted an assault
hours after being release from prison. Her concl uded t hat

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



this was an indication of the need for |onger prison
sent ences.

1:48:17 PM

Co- Chair Chenaul t MOVED to ADOPT Work Draft #24-LS1307\U,
Luckhaupt, 3/6/06, as the version of the bill before the
Comm ttee. There being NO OBJECTI ON, the notion was ADOPTED.

Senator Bunde referred to SUSAN PARKS, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL, CRI M NAL DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAWto address the
bill. Ms. Parks highlighted changes in the Commttee
Substitute. She noted changes in Section 1 and 2, referred
to as the “peer group anendnment”. She stated that there was
a concern about whether conduct between teenage peers houl d
be considered crimnal. She explained that the changes
specified the need for one of the teenagers to be 17 years
of age or older, and for there to be four years’ difference
in ages to constitute a crimnal act.

1: 50: 58 PM

Ms. Parks also noted another mmjor change to the bill
contained in Section 8, page 7. She explained that the
original bill mandated that there be probation for sex
of f enses. She pointed out that probation only carried
weight if it pertained to suspended tine, which enabled
violators of probation to be punished. She stated that

Section 8 required a certain amunt of suspended tine so
t hat mandatory probation carried significance. She pointed
out that there were anendnments to the ranges that had been
increased by 5 years to allow for required suspended tine.

1: 52: 00 PM

Ms. Parks also pointed out that on Page 6, line 11, the
range of sentence was changed from “one to twelve years” to
“two to twel ve years”.

Representative Stoltze referred to a sentencing proceeding
that rem nded himof the truth in sentencing provisions, and
asked about the actual provisions.

1:53:11 PM

Ms. Parks enphasized that a prior sexual offense would
guarantee a severe sentence for a subsequent offense,
whereas a first time offender mght receive a |lighter
sentence, such as four years, wth the possibility of
di scretionary parole.

Representative Stoltze noted that the offender to which he

referenced in Wasilla had received a sentence of 99 years,
being eligible for parole in 23 years.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



1: 54: 20 PM

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #1.

Page 3, lines 18-21
Del et e subsection (b)

| nsert:

(b) This statute does not apply if any of the
circunstances or conduct establishing the offense
relate to an attorney-client relationship with the sex
of fender or child ki dnapper.

The defendant may file notice pre-trial that subsection

(b) applies. The notice nerely requires that a good
faith basis for its filing exist. The defendant may
request a pre-trial ruling by the Judge, or may request
a jury determnation, or both. The State has the

burden to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that sub-
section (b) does not apply.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Co-Chair Meyer referred to Ms. Parks for discussion of the
amendnent. Ms. Parks explained that the amendnent pertai ned
to the “failure to report” provisions contained in Section 3
of the bill. She explained that the Public Defender’s
office raised concerns that the bill created an ethical
dilemTma for a defense attorney representing a client who
shoul d have been registered and was not registered. She
stated that the |anguage had been devel oped in cooperation
with the Public Defender’s office in order to mtigate the
et hi cal issue.

QUI NLAN  STEI NER, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF PUBLIC DEFENDER
testified online, stating that he had worked with Ms. Parks
on the language to renedy the ethical dilenm.

Representative Stol ze W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON

There being no further objection, the Anendnent was ADOPTED

Representative Kerttula MOVED to W THDRAW Anendnents #2 and
#3.

Representative Kerttula then MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent #4,
24-LS1307\ U. 2, Luckhaupt, 3/7/06.

1: 57: 38 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker OBJECTED.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Representative Kerttula explained that her anendnents did
not indicate a |ack of support or respect for the sponsors,
but rather pertained to the conplicated nature of the
| egi sl ati on. She thanked the sponsors for changing the
crime of om ssion and for extending statutory rape.

Representative Kerttula specified t hat Amendnent #4
pertained to sentencing for Cass A and Cass B felonies.
She conceded that these were serious crines that should
carry serious penalties, however pointed out that if the
sentences were increased to this degree it would generate
commensurate costs. She proposed bringing the sentences
within a range that allowed for a nore gradual inpact.

Senator Bunde agreed that the bill would generate a cost.
He discussed the nerits of the costs as conpared to the
quality of safety in society. He also pointed out that
| arge sentences, as well as incarcerating offenders for a
long and costly period, also served as a deterrent. He
concluded that the societal cost therefore balanced the
financial costs.

2:01: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN ( Co- Sponsor) enphasi zed t hat ,
particularly for wvictinms age 13 or younger, the cost of
rehabilitation Jlasted a Ilifetine. He referred to
di scussions on the cost of such rehabilitation, and
estimated it at $45,000 per victim He also noted that
there were 518 reported victins, resenting only 16 percent
of sexual crimes commtted that were actually reported. He
al so rem nded the Conmttee about the rate of recidivismdue
to the inability to rehabilitate offenders. He also
recal l ed discussions with Conm ssioner Tandeske, confirm ng
that these offenders also conmtted other types of crines.
He concluded that all of these costs should be considered in
the entire picture.

2:03:47 PM

SENATOR GUESS (CO SPONSOR) spoke in opposition to the
amendnent, but welconmed the discussion of the issues. She
referred to previously passed bills (Sen. French), and

testinmony by admnistration stating that the bill did not
pertain as nmuch to sentences as to conpliance with a court
case. She enphasized that the bill sponsors did not
contenpl ate appropriate sentence ranges. She noted that the
Legi sl ature discussed such policy issues at |ength. She
poi nted out that Senator French's bill did not address first

time offenders or the sentencing structure.

2: 05: 34 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Senator Guess also referred to the third section of the
amendnent that reduced probation requirenents. She pointed
out that probation stipulations allowed for the best use of
t he polygraph in helping prevent offenders from recurrence.
She stated her opinion that it was wong to reduce sentences
and probation on a policy basis. She agreed wth
Representative Neuman that the societal cost of sexual
crimes was significant, if somewhat unknown, and concl uded
that it outwei ghed any other costs.

Represent ati ve Hawker MAI NTI NED hi s OBJECTI ON

Representative Kerttula concurred with t he Sponsors’
addition of probation to the Committee Substitute, and
expl ained that her anmendment was an effort to bring the
sentencing down into a sonewhat reduced range wth
commensur ate probation periods. She stated that this was
the nost difficult of her proposed anmendnents.

Responding to a question by Co-Chair Chenault, Senator Guess
clarified an earlier observation that sexual offenders
r esponded wel | to t he structured envi r onnent of
incarceration. She referred to Senator French’s bill, and a
supporting docunent confirmng that sexual offenders often
received “good tinme”, which under the current anmendnent
woul d be eight years.

Representative Bunde noted that sex offenders often sought
vul nerabl e victins.

2:09: 19 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Moses, Kertulla
OPPOSED: Stoltze, Hawker, Holm Joule, Kelly, Meyer
Chenaul t

The Anmendnent FAILED on a vote of 7 to 2.

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #5, 24-
LS1307\ U. 1, Luckhaupt, 3/7/06.

Representative Stoltze OBJECTED

Representative Kerttula explained +that the anendnent
pertained to Cass C Felonies. Wil e she conceded that
these offenses could indicate serious behavior, she noted
that it could also include |ess serious behavior such as
touching. She stated her belief that the maxi num sentences
were often disproportionate to the | ess serious crinmes. She
also noted that the Amendnent contained a comensurate
reduction of probationary peri ods.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



2:11: 02 PM

Representative Stoltze referred to coments made in the
Senate Judiciary Commttee regarding the issue of incidental
touch, and asked how often instances of this nature were
pr osecut ed.

SUSAN PARKS, DEPUTY ATTORNEY CGENERAL, CRIM NAL DI VI SION,
DEPARTMENT OF LAWreferred to case exanples and stated that
in 2004, of over 100 case that were charged w th touching
offenses, only 40 times did they receive the nobst serious
of fense, and wusually when acconpanied by a nore serious
charge. She noted a case in Anchorage when a young girl had
recei ved touches over an eight year period, that eventually
devel oped into nore serious conduct, and concluded that this
was often the case. She al so noted that touching offenses
were often prosecuted when of fenders had been interrupted or
fought off. She noted several cases of touching offenses in
various serious circunstances and concluded that these could
be potentially serious offenses.

2:15:16 PM

Representative Stoltze  concl uded t hat t he t ouchi ng
offenses in a situation of an accidental or *“barroom grope”
were rarely prosecuted. Ms. Parks responded that those

types of cases were not usually charged.

Representative Neuman referred to the first section of the
amendnent, deleting the nunbers “99” and “20”, and pointed
out that the bill |anguage actually stated “not nore than
99/20”. He also referred to lines 22 to 23 of the anmendnent
proposing to delete “99” and insert “9 to 20", and pointed
out that these sentences pertained to a third felony
convi cti on.

2:17: 10 PM

Responding to a comment by Co-Chair Meyer, Senator GQuess
stated that the Sponsors were opposed to the anmendnent.
Senator Q@Guess noted that at the third degree level, a wde
variety of conducts were included. She noted a recent study
about the problem of rape in prisons, as well as about
incest. She concluded that there were serious crines
included in this range. She explained that a w der range of
sentences at this level of offense was to give courts
flexibility.

2:18:44 PM

Representative Kerttula expressed t hat whi |l e she
appreciated the benefit of flexibility, she maintained
concern over the large range of offenses in the bill. She

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



proposed breaking the bill apart, and separating the |esser
offenses from nmuch npbre serious behaviors. She al so
commented that, along wth flexibility, an anmount of
di scretion remained to the courts. She noted that |ow | evel
thefts were also included within the same |evel and
therefore subject to the same sentencing structure.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.
IN FAVOR Mbses, Kertulla

OPPCSED: Stoltze, Hawker, Holm Joule, Kelly, Chenault,
Meyer

The notion FAILED on a vote of 2 to 7.
Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #6.
Represent ati ve Hawker OBJECTED.

Representative Kerttula comented that in her experience as
a defense attorney she had dealt with offenders who were
wel | aware of sentencing ranges. She stated her concern that
such know edge of sentences mght induce an offender to
murder a victimof a sexual assault in an attenpt to obtain
a lighter sentence.

Representative Hawker strongly nmaintained his objection,
expressing his concern for victinms of sexual assaults who
serve a “life sentence” of suffering.

2:23: 51 PM

Representati ve Neuman stressed that the majority of crines
referred to by the anendnments were conmm tted agai nst persons
under the age of thirteen. He also noted that the
perpetrators often carried firearns, thereby justifying the
hi gher sentences.

Representative Bunde pointed out that in any of the
sentences, a single mtigating circunstance could reduce the

sentence by as nuch as half. He noted that courts and
juries could exercise a certain anmount of discretion in
t hese circunstances. He nmentioned that other states had

substantially increased penalties for sexual predators. He
al so pointed out that offenders often noved from state to
state, and was concerned that Al aska could becone a prine
destination for sexual predators if our sentences were
| ower .

Representative Kerttula clarified that her anendnents did

not address repeat offenses, and only pertained to the | ower
end of the offenses. She proposed that the | ower end of the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



sentence should be lower than that for nurder in the second
degr ee.

Representative Bunde stated that research showed that by the
time a perpetrator was arrested and tried they often had
commtted a nunber of unreported offenses.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

IN FAVOR: Kertulla

OPPCOSED: Hawker, Holm Joule, Kelly, Mses, Stoltze, Meyer
Chenaul t

The notion FAILED on a vote of 1 to 8.
2:27:26 PM

Representati ve Bunde departed the neeting and stated that he
was opposed to any anendnents.

Representative Kerttula MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent #7 (24-
LS1307\ U. 4, Luckhaupt, 3/7/06).

Represent ati ve Hawker OBJECTED.

Representative Kerttula explained that the anendnent dealt
with the failure to report sexual offenders or child
ki dnappers. She noted that this section of the bill had
been anended to address ethical considerations for defense
attorneys.

2:29: 08 PM

Representative Kerttula suggested that the standard should
be one of “know ngly” disregarding requirenents rather than

“reckl essly”. She noted that in an earlier discussion M.
Parks had referred to other legislation that enploys such
duel standards. Representative Kerttula proposed that the
current standards in the bill would make it confusing and

nmore difficult to prosecute.

Senator CGuess stated that she was opposed to the anendnent,
and confirnmed their belief that the duel standards woul d not
cause confusi on.

2: 30: 25 PM

Ms. Parks stated her belief that changing the nental state
to “recklessly” would make it nore difficult to prosecute
the cases. She noted that certain offenses contain both a
“reckl ess” and “knowi ng” term nol ogy. She pointed out that
“recklessly” was a difficult standard to neet, since it
requires that the offender is aware of and consciously

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



disregards a substanti al risk, constituting a gross
deviation from a reasonable standard of conduct. She
expressed concern that those who wish to remain ignorant of
circunstantial evidence can sinply claim to “not know
whereas it can be proven that a person acted in reckless
di sregard of the evidence.

2:32: 15 PM

Representative Stoltze asked how it would affect a famly
situation. Ms. Parks confirnmed that the concern would be
that individuals woul d choose not to confirm suspicions.

2:32:45 PM

Representati ve Hawker observed that use of the “reckless”
standard had been adequately defended. He questi oned,
however, t he doubl e st andard “and know i ngly”.
Representative Hawker asked whether, if an individual was

unaware of |ocation of a perpetrator, their know ng could be
proven.

2:34: 02 PM

Representative Neuman stated his opinion that the standards
were a policy decision. He questioned whether if an
i ndi vi dual knew of incest in a famly, or a sexual nolester,
and purposefully did not bring these facts forward, or even
wi tnessed an act while under the influence of a substance,

they would bear sonme neasure of quilt. He observed that
the victins should be given first consideration, along with
our responsibility to society. He suggested that there

shoul d be a greater aptitude toward societal responsibility.

Representati ve Hawker commented that in the construction of
statute, they were obligated to protect the innocent, as

well as provide a vehicle to prosecute the guilty. He
expressed concern that wth the current bill, the statute
m ght prosecute the innocent.

2:36: 50 PM

Senat or Quess acknow edged Representati ve Hawker’ s

observation as valid, and conceded that |anguage m ght be
changed to protect an individual who failed to report the
| ocation of a sex offender due to their |ack of know edge.

2:37: 58 PM

Representative Hawker asked if it was the chairman's
intention to report the bill out of Conmttee, and suggested
that the |anguage could be renedied during discussion of
ot her amendnents.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer recommended that the amendnent be wi t hdrawn.

Representative Kerttul a W THDREW Anendnent #7.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the bill would be HELD. He
requested that updated fiscal notes be prepared for the next
hearing to take into account any bill changes.

2:39: 08 PM

Representative Kerttula requested that the remai nder of her
amendnents (#8-10) be wthdrawn in order for further
consi deration before the next hearing.

2: 39: 38 PM

CS SB 218 (FIN was HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

2:40: 18 PM
#hb408
HOUSE BI LL NO 408

"An Act relating to the definition of 'child abuse and
neglect' for child protection purposes; and providing
for an effective date."

2:42: 27 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to ADOPT work draft #24-BH202\Y.
There being no objection, the DRAFT was ADOPTED.

Rynnvieva Mss noted that the bill was sponsored by the
Governor, and explained the influence of |ast year’s House
Bill 53, conbined with efforts of the Admnistration and

various legislators into one vehicle, called the Famly
Rights Act of 2006. She acknow edged the inclusion of
legislation by Representative Chenault, Representative
Coghill, and changes added by the Ofice of Children's
Services (CCS).

Ms. Mbss addressed Representative Coghill’s concern wth
section 5 of the Commttee Substitute. She explained that
| ast year, under the previous law as witten in HB 53, OCS
could only discuss the report of harm that involved the
di sclosing information in the case of a resulting death. At
that tinme, the Attorney Ceneral’s office stipulated that the
agency could only discuss the nobst recent report of harm
that actually resulted in the death. She clarified that the
revised bill now allows them to discuss any report of harm
once requirements had been net, regarding any child in this
situation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Ms. Moss also noted that another concern by Representative

Coghill was addressed by Section 7 of +the Conmttee
Substitute. M. Mss explained that this anendnent resulted
from a situation occurring in Representative Coghill’s

district where two teenage children had been placed in a
foster home and foster parents had collected the children’s
previous pfd’s. In this case, the foster placenment did not
work out, but the children’ s dividends were lost. The bill
stipulates that once a child has been placed in the custody
of OCS, their dividends will accrue until they reach the age
of 18, at which time they will have one year to collect the
di vi dends.

2:46: 09 PM

Ms. Mbss pointed out that Section 4 incorporated House Bill
327, by Representative Chenault, requiring that when a
public official requested information, the Departnent be
given five working days to «collect information. She
expressed that the Sponsor was very pleased wth the
Commttee Substitute, and thought that the |anguage was
excel | ent.

2:47: 16 PM

TAMWY SANDOVAL, DEPUTY COW SSION FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES OFFI CES OF CHI LDREN S SERVI CES
testified regarding the bill. She stated that the original
intent of HB 408 was to conply with federal |aw The
“Keeping Children and Famlies Safe Act” of 2003, anended
the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatnment Act (CAPTA), and
enacted new federal requirenents for those states receiving
CAPTA funds. She then explained that the bill had been
anended to include a reporting requirenent at delivery by a
health care provider determining that a child has been
“adversely affected by or is withdrawing from expose to, a
controlled substance or alcohol”. She explained that
Sections 1, 2 & 3 related to reasonable efforts and
involuntary term nation of parental rights. She stated that
t hese sections had been anended to require the court to find
cl ear and convincing evidence, rather than a preponderance
of evidence, prior to term nating parental rights.

Ms. Sandoval referred to Jan Rutherdal e, Assistant Attorney
General, Departnment of Law, who was online to answer any
guesti ons.

Ms. Sandoval also referred to Section 4, related to
Depar t ment of Health and  Soci al Services and the
Adm nistration’s disclosure to public officials. Sections 5
and 6 related to disclosure of agency records, anended to
comply with the intent of HB 53, as it relates to disclosing
information about high profile child protection case. She
noted that they had experienced the function of HB 53, and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



suggested the new | anguage to provide nore transparency and
accountability. She concluded that Section 7 changes
conditions wunder which OCS could release a child s PFD
account trust nonies.

2:49: 46 PM

Representative Kerttula asked regar di ng changi ng t he
evi dence standard to clear and convincing, and expressed
concern that currently if the court found by preponderance
of evidence, which was a |ower standard, children could be
pul l ed out for a nunmber of serious circunstances. She asked
how t he departnent of |law felt about raising the standard.

2:50: 58 PM

JAN RUTHERDALE, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW noted that the anendnments involve the termnation
statutes only, and not the initial renoval, which is under
tenporary custody and adjudication. She stated that the
departnent of |law actually pointed out the current problem
due to the constitutional argument that the standard of
evi dence was too | ow

2:51: 59 PM

Co-Chair Chenault referred to the indeterm nate fiscal note,
and asked if OCS would be affected by the requirenent to
track permanent fund nonies for children until the age of
18. Rep Chenault asked how many children were currently
tracked in this way.

Ms. Sandoval noted that the indeterm nate note had been
prepared earlier, but that after clarification about the
intent of the provision with the sponsor, the fiscal note
was changed to zero. She responded that only 17 children in
this year had been placed in guardianship.

2:53:12 PM

Representative Kerttula asked about the section that added
al cohol into the definition of child abuse and neglect. She
noted a concern with section 8 regarding the |evel of effect
from al cohol that would constitute the definition. She gave
the exanple that an individual m ght have consuned al coho
before knowing they were pregnant, and expressed that she
did not believe this should fall under the definition.

2:54: 58 PM

Ms. Rutherdale responded from a |legal standpoint that this
section applied only with children born with very obvious
fetal al cohol syndrone, but not when a person had consuned a
m nor anount of al cohol prior to knowi ng they were pregnant.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



She stated that other affects of alcohol were not apparent
until a child had entered school age, presenting in a
child s ability to focus, poor judgnent ability, etc..

2:56: 31 PM

Co- Chair Meyer opened the floor to public testinony. There
was no one available for testinony, and testinony was
cl osed.

Co- Chair Meyer asked about the indetermnate fiscal note,
and Ms. Rutherdale reiterated that once a confusion had been
clarified, the fiscal note had been refl ected as zero.

2: 57: 50 PM

Ms. Moss expl ained the concern that, in the way the bill had
been witten, OCS would be required to apply for dividends
for children that were no longer in their custody but with a
| egal guardi an. She expl ai ned that dividends were applied
for only when the child was in the custody of OCS; otherw se
their |egal guardian woul d apply.

2:58: 35 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to create a Zero Fiscal Note for
Heal th and Social Services, Children’s Services, Children' s
Servi ces Managenent, Conponent #2666 (3/07/06). There being
NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

2:59: 11 PM

Co- Chair Chenaul t t hanked Ms. Sandoval for her good work
resol ving cases. He then MOVED to REPORT CS HB408 (FIN) out
of Conmttee wth individual recomendations and 2 zero
fiscal notes (#1, DHSS; New, HFC).

There being NO OBJECTIONS, the bill was passed by UNAN MOUS
CONSENT.

#hb485

HOUSE BI LL NO 485

"An Act anmending the State Personnel Act to place in
t he exenpt service pharmaci sts and physicians enpl oyed
in the Departnent of Health and Social Services or in
the Departnent of Corrections and corporate inconme tax
forensic auditors enployed by the division of the
Departnment of Revenue principally responsible for the
collection and enforcenent of state taxes who
specialize in apportionnent analysis and tax shelters
of nmultistate corporate taxpayers; and providing for an
effective date.”

3: 00: 53 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



JANET CLARKE, ASSISTANT COW SSI ONER, DI VISION OF FI NANCE
AND MANAGEMENT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVICES, referred to Virginia Smley to speak to a
situation which generated the bill.

3:01: 55 PM

VIRG NI A SM LEY, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF Pl ONEER HOVES gave an
overview of the pharmacist duties in the Pioneer’s Hone.
She gave the following overview of the pharmacy and
phar maci st duties as foll ows:

“The six Pioneer Honmes |ocated in Ketchikan, Sitka,
Juneau, Anchorage, Palnmer and Fairbanks all rely on
receiving nedications for their residents from the
Division’s central pharmacy | ocated in APH

Per state and federal |aw the pharmacy nust be under
the oversight of I|icensed pharmacists. W can and do
use school of pharnmacy interns and pharnmacy assi stants,
but three pharnacists are necessary to supervise staff,
di spense nedi cations, conply with Medicare Part D and

Medi cai d docunent at i on, and provi de clinical
consultation to physicians, residents, famlies, and
staff.

In the quarter ending Dec 31, 2005, the pharmacy
packaged and dispensed 353,821 individual doses of
medi cations. Dispensing that volune of nedications
requires a full staff present and working.

We have alnost a full year’s history in first |osing
our pharmacists to jobs that pay nmuch hi gher wages and
t hen not being able to attract new pharmacists to apply
for the vacant positions.

The federal governnment is paying wages that are
conpetitive with the private sector, and offering
si gni ng bonuses and forgi veness of student | oans.

Nationally, the sane is true in the private sector, as
shown by lucrative offers being nade to pharmaci sts in
recruitnment letters and advertising in national
publ i cati ons.

For eight nonths of Jlast year we had a single

pharmaci st on our payroll. It was necessary for us to
sign contracts with two tenp agencies, and we were able
to fill many, but not all, of the vacant shifts. W

paid the contract agencies $70  hr for their
phar maci st s.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



At this critical point we finally placed the pharmaci st
PCN into a tenporary hi gher paying category in order to
recruit and hire nore conpetitively. However, the
Di vision of Personnel advised us we would have to seek
a nore permanent solution. That is why we are here
t oday.

The problem is that under the present wage scale for
per manent pharnmaci st positions in the state system we
are not conpetitive with other enployers.

We are asking to have pharnmacists noved into the exenpt
service with other professional classifications as it
will provide the needed flexibility to be conpetitive
in the marketpl ace.

She noted that pharmaci sts di spensed an extrenely high
nunber of doses of nedication, but that they were not
able to attract or retain qualified pharmacists as
conpared with other states. She notes that during the
following year, only one pharmacist was on contract,
requiring them to hire tenporary pharmacists at over
doubl e the salary paid to the contract enpl oyee.”

3:04:19 PM

Ms. Clarke noted that eight pharmacy positions existed in
the Departnment of Health and Social Services: three at the
Pioneer Hone, two at API, two in Medicaid, and one in
epi dem ol ogy and public health. She stated that those in
these positions were required to provide high-Ievel
consultation services, neaning that risks were great if
these positions were not filled. She noted that in the
private sector, pharmacists were paid $55 to $65 per hour,
or up to $70 per hour for tenporary enployees. She proposed
that pharmacists belonged in the sane exenpt category as
psychi atrists, nedical exam ners, etc.

3: 06: 36 PM

LAURA LINK, DI VISION CF ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT
OF CORRECTI ONS expressed that her departnent experienced
simlar problens in recruiting and retaining qualified
phar maci st s.

Responding to a question by Co-Chair Myer, she stated that
pharmaci sts maintained simlar educational requirenents as
doct ors.

3:08: 26 PM

JERRY  BURNETT, D RECTOR OF ADM NI STRATI VE  SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE spoke to the second part of the bill,
regarding corporate tax forensic auditors, noving theminto
t he exenpt category.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



ROBYNN WLSON, DI RECTOR OF TAX DIVISION  DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE expl ai ned the function of auditors for the State of
Al aska. She discussed the nethod for determning the
taxabl e incone of |arge groups of conpanies. She noted the
conplexities involved in dealing with multi-state and
wor | dwi de conpani es that did business in Al aska, as well as
the wide variety of taxpayers. She expl ained the goal of
determ ning val ue of property, sales, vessels, etc.

3:11: 03 PM

Ms. WIson noted her experience as an auditor hired by the
State of Alaska 11 years ago. She expl ained that at that
time, a nunber of their nore experienced auditors cane from
the internal revenue service. She noted that public
auditors made noney by working long hours, as enployees
gai ned experience. She pointed out that at that tine the
state paid a wage conpetitive with the federal governnent.

3:12:18 PM

Ms. W/Ilson then explained how circunstances had changed in
several ways: 1) large public accounting firns had
condensed, decreasing supply of enployees; 2) the manner of
busi ness had changed, wth a new focus on selling tax
structures; 3) accounting rules had devel oped out of recent
corporate upsets, increasing the wages for auditors in the

private sector. She pointed out that the state of Al aska
had mai ntai ned an even wage, while wages in the public and
federal sectors had increased. She stated that in recent

years, the nunber of state auditors decreased fromten to
two, a nunber too small to conplete the workl oad.

3:14: 00 PM

She noted that the departnment had tried several recruitnent
met hods for auditors. She discussed nethods seeking
auditors fromthe University of Al aska that had as yet been
unsuccessful, and noted that even if it had succeeded; they

did not have the ability to train new auditors. She
concluded that salary was the problem in recruitnent, and
proposed that the bill would help to attract experienced

auditors by establishing three exenpt positions that could
conpete with the private market.

3:15:43 PM

Responding to a question by Co-Chair Meyer, M. W son
noted the curiosity over whether new auditors mght be
needed in devel oping the new PPD t ax.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Responding to a further question, she noted that the
educational requirenments for auditors would include a
Masters Degree or Certified Public Accountant certificate.

Representative Joule asked for clarification on the exenpt
st at us. M. Burnett explained that an exenpt position was
not covered by the personnel rules adopted by the Personnel
Board and not subject to the salary schedule of other
enpl oyees, enabling salaries to be paid by a different
met hod.

Representati ve Joul e asked whet her exenpt positions were
only appoi nted, such as governnment officials. M. Burnett
explained that certain positions in Departnment of Revenue
were exenpt, not due to political appointnment, but rather to
skills sets.

3:18:41 PM

Representative Stoltze asked what aspect of t he
classification status solved the salary probl ens.

M. Burnett clarified that the issue at hand was one of
salary, and not classification. He noted that they were
currently unable to pay beyond the classification Iimt of
range. He stated that the departnent was not able to pay
the level of salary expected by an experienced CPA, which
coul d exceed $100 thousand.

Responding to another question by Representative Stoltze,
Ms. WIlson noted that a salary survey focused on the Leve
3, revealed a large salary disparity at the higher |evel
hi gher than the disparity on levels 1 and 2. She expl ai ned
that even noving an auditor up by one or two ranges could
not provide a conpetitive salary within the market. She
concluded that this was the reason for the need for a
cat egory.

3:21:30 PM

Representative Kerttula comented that exenpt enployees
were easier to termnate. She wondered if this would
present a problem wth the comng oil taxes. She asked

whether it was possible to sinply negotiate higher salaries
in the collective bargaining process.

M. Burnett conceded there mght be sone possibility of
negotiating a higher salary within classified service. He
poi nted out that the terns of the negotiation would need to
be approved by the |egislature, which he proposed would be
an inefficient nethod of hiring.

Representative Kertulla commented that it mght be worth
t hat nmet hod considering the inportance of the upcom ng jobs.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Representative Kelly asked if it was standard for these
types of positions to be exenpt in the private sector. M.
Burnet clarified that the types of jobs in the private
sector were structured differently. He surm sed that
auditors mght not be termnated for political reasons.

Represent ati ve Hawker noted his own experience during his
tenure at the Legislature of auditors being term nated for
political reasons.

3:24: 26 PM

JI'M  DUNCAN, BUSI NESS MANACER, ALASKA STATE EMPLOYEES
ASSCCI ATION testified. He concurred that both pharnmacists
and auditors were difficult to recruit and required a higher
salary, but disagreed with creating an exenpt position to
solve the problem pointing out that other types of
positions were difficult to fill. He rem nded the Conmttee
that the nmerit system of enploynent was established by the
Al aska State Constitution, with those elected or appointed
being exenpt from the system He expressed concern over
changi ng the systemthrough this bill, and observed that the
i ssue at hand was salary rates and not policy.

3:27:43 PM

M. Duncan proposed that in exenpt service there would be
political pressure. He gave the exanple of an auditor being
pl aced under pressure by a large corporation to slow an
audit by nmeans of the exenpt system He further pointed out
that as the State considered changing its corporate tax
structure, it mght not be wise timng to nove those in
charge of collecting tax and auditing corporations into
exenpt status where they mght be subjected to politica
pressure. He referred to recent occurrences in Departnent
of Natural Resources.

3:28:51 PM

M. Duncan commented that the classified system was not at
i ssue, but rather the pay structure within the system He
rem nded the Committee that the pay plan was nmandatory,
subj ect to bargai ning, enabling the Adm nistration to change
the pay plan due to an inability to attract enployees. He
stated that he was currently conmposing a letter to the
Adm ni stration proposing that ranges 28, 29 and 30 be added

to the pay scale in order to solve the problem He
suggested that the classified service ought to afford the
same salary as in exenpt service. He encouraged the

Adm nistration to examne the ability for novenent to other
pay scales through internal/external conparisons and market
based st udi es.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



3:30:34 PM

He suggest ed t hat currently t hey wer e conpari ng
i nappropriate job classes, and that other conparisons should
be nade to perhaps create a new job class famly for these
forensic auditors.

M. Duncan stated that he did not believe the bill would
serve the State's problens well and would erode the nerit
system He addressed the issue of pharmaci sts, noting that
federally funded positions were required to be subject to a
merit based pay system and asked how these requirenents
woul d be satisfied or if federal funding would be |ost.

3:33:23 PM

M. Duncan also noted that pharmacists’ positions were
establ i shed, and pointed out that our constitution prevented
repairing a contract by passing a statute. He pointed out
t hat the pharmaci sts were covered by the current collective
bar gai ni ng agreenent. He proposed that the statute would
violate the contract provision. He stated that although the
Union did not wish to enter into a debate, they would
certainly demand enforcenent of their current contract.

3:35: 35 PM

M. Duncan expressed his confusion over the description for
the position of forensic tax auditor. He noted the theory
that a description would be witten after hiring the type of
i ndi vi dual needed for the job and proposed that the process

should work in a different manner. He stated his belief
that a forensic tax auditor was a Revenue Auditor 4 and read
fromthe description of that position: “work with nultiple

and conplex accounting nethods and systens, (generate
significant revenue from the collection of taxes, apply a
wi de diverse body of authorities dealing with apportionnment
i ssues, determne correct unitary group, apportionable
i ncome, be aware of state statute and federal regulations”.
He concluded that the new positions duplicated a position

whi ch occurred within the classified service. He suggested
that a new pay plan be discussed with the Union, and that a
j ob description be developed, prior to a hiring process. In
summary, he stated his belief that the proposed process was
flawed, ignoring the mandatory bargaining agreenent of the

state and perhaps other representing unions. M. Duncan
also surmised that the proposed I|egislation would place
these revenue auditors at will and subject to pressures by

those corporations they audit. He observed that while a new
revenue system was being considered, they were also
considering placing those overseeing the taxes in an *“at
will” position subject to political pressure. He urged care
in considering this |egislation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



3:38:49 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker asked whet her M . Duncan had
di scussed these issues with the Adm nistration. M. Duncan
stated that the Union had not been briefed in advance by the
Adm ni stration, but that they now intended to follow up with
di scussi on. In response to a follow up by Representative
Hawker, M. Duncan expressed his belief in the possibility
for productive discussion and the inplenentation of an
i nproved pay plan. He enphasized that his proposal would
not open the discussion of changing pay plans for other
positions.

3:40: 24 PM

Representative Kelly asked if such a circunstance had
occurred before. M. Duncan referred to a list of positions
that had been added to the exenpt service. He noted however
that these jobs were fornmerly in comm ssions, for exanple
the Mental Health Trust, when enployees were actually laid
off and then rehired into exenpt service. He urged caution,
since there were other jobs where pay scales were not
adequat e.

Representative Kelly asked if the system proposed was
fl exi ble enough to allow for downward changes. M. Duncan
responded that although the union would not advocate for
| ower pay, there had been determ nations for positions to be
classified dowmmward in the past.

3:42: 54 PM

Clarifying an issue for Representative Kelly, M. Duncan
commented that the pharnmaci st shortage had been solved on a

tenporary basis. Representative Kelly asked whether this
would be a method to carry forward until the next round of
bargaining to solve the current problem M. Duncan

conceded that this was possible. He pointed out, however
that since the proposed legislation would not take effect
until July, and a new pay period could be in place by that
tine.

3:43:59 PM

Co- Chair Meyer expressed the intention to HOLD the bill in
Commttee, and a desire to view M. Duncan’s letter to the
Adm ni stration. He suggested that there be a representative
fromthe Admi nistrative present at the next hearing of the
bill.

M LA COSGROVE, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF PERSONNEL, DEPARTMENT
OF ADM NI STRATION clarified that there were three types of
enpl oyees: 1) dassified, fully subject to the nerit
system including the classifications and pay plan; 2)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



Partially Exenpt, not subject to all rules, but subject to
classification and pay plan; and 3) Exenpt, which were not
subject to classification or pay plan, but still possibly
subject to collective bargaining, such as enployees of the
Mar i ne Hi ghway System

3:46: 25 PM

Ms. Cosgrove noted that while some exenpt positions were “at
will”, such as Conm ssioners and high |evel policy nakers,
ot her exenpt enployees were held at a higher bar for
dism ssal from state service. She pointed out that these
state enployees were treated fairly and equitably wth
managenent rights and not easily di sm ssed.

3:47: 26 PM

Ms. Cosgrove al so enphasized that wages for pharnmacists and
ot her such professionals were very volatile at the current
time. She suggested that these wages were well beyond what
could be negotiated under the current classification plan
which relies upon the concept of internal alignnent. She
explained that all job classes nmust bear sone relationship
to one another. She followed that revenue auditor positions
would have to increase to remain in relation to the
i ncreased wages for top-level auditors. She al so pointed out
that the state was considering a nmarket based pay plan, but
stressed that internal alignnment would still apply. She
concl uded that the market based pay plan would not solve the
probl em of pharmaci sts and auditors at the highest |evel
She expressed a desire to reply in nore detail at the next
nmeeti ng.

3:49: 15 PM

Co- Chair Meyer stated that HB 485 would be HELD in Conmttee
for further consideration.

#

ADJ OQURNNMENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:49 P. M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 03/07/06 1:46 P. M



